
Regular Monthly Meeting of the Board of Education

September 26, 2022, Immediately Following the Annual Meeting

District Office Conference Room

This meeting is open to the public. If a member of the public requires an accommodation to

attend the meeting, he or she should contact Executive Assistant Lisa Boss at least 24 hours in

advance of the meeting to request an accommodation.

Please note that any meeting where more seating is needed than is available will be moved to the

Pederson Commons, which is directly adjacent to the Conference Room. Please watch for door

signage.

I. Call to Order

II. Roll Call

III. Approval of Agenda

IV. Pledge of Allegiance

V. Communication with the Board (OE 8)

A. Unofficial Enrollment Data (OE 8)

B. Student Representative Introductions and Reports (GC 10)

C. Discussion of Board Activities (GC 3.4)

D. Budget Monitoring/Budget Transfers (OE 8.2)

E. Debt Payoff (OE 6.1)

F. Academic and Career Planning Update (R1, R3)

VI. Agenda-Related Public Comment (OE 8.4)

VII. Non-Agenda-Related Public Comment (OE 8.4)

VIII. Monitoring for Results (B/SR 5.4a & B/SR 5.3a)

A. OE 2:  Emergency Superintendent Succession

B. R 3:  Application of Knowledge and Skills

IX. Board Consent Agenda (GC 2.4)

A. Removal of an Item from Board Consent Agenda for Separate

Consideration (GC 2.5)

B. Approval of August 15, 2022 Meeting Minutes (GC 2.4)

C. Approval of August 15, 2022 Executive Session Meeting Minutes (GC 2.4)

D. Approval of September 13, 2022 Meeting Minutes (GC 2.4)



E. Approval of September 13, 2022 Executive Session Meeting Minutes (GC

2.4)

X. Superintendent Consent Agenda (GC 2.4)

A. Removal of an Item from the Superintendent Consent Agenda for Separate

Consideration (GC 2.5)

B. Approval of Hires, Resignations and Retirements (GC 2.4)

1. AMS/AHS Lunch/Recess Supervisor - Hire

2. AMS Lunch/Recess Supervisor - Hire

3. AMS Lunch/Recess Supervisor - Hire

4. AMS Lunch/Recess Supervisor - Hire

5. AMS Boys Soccer Coach - Hire

6. AIS Lunch/Recess Supervisor - Hire

7. AIS Lunch/Recess Supervisor - Hire

8. AES Full Time Special Ed Paraprofessional - Hire

9. AES Part Time Special Ed Paraprofessional - Hire

10. AES Administrative Assistant - Hire

C. Approval of Checks for Payment (GC 2.4)

D. Authorization for Participation on State Crisis Response Team (GC 2.4)

XI. Matters Reserved for Board Action (B/SR 2.1)

A. Item Removed from Board Consent Agenda for Separate Consideration

(GC 2.5)

B. Item Removed from Superintendent Consent Agenda for Separate

Consideration (GC 2.5)

C. Consideration of Facility Planning Input (OE 3)

XII. Recess

XIII. Discussion of the Meeting (GC 2.2)

XIV. Adjourn to Executive Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute 19.85(1)(c) to

consider the employment of a public employee, 19.85(1)(c) to discuss the

performance of an individual employee, and 19.85(1)(f) to discuss a student

discipline matter.

XV. Following closed session, the Board will entertain a motion to reconvene into

open session and will take any further action that is necessary and appropriate,

including acting on any resolution that may be presented.

XVI. Book Study - The Art of Governing Coherently - Chapter 3 Discussion

XVII. Adjourn

Students are prepared academically and socially for personal success in life and are

respectful, contributing members of the local and global communities.



September 23, 2022

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that members of the School District of Altoona Board of Education

will hold a regular meeting on September 26, 2022 immediately following the Annual

Meeting scheduled at 6:30 pm, in the boardroom of the District Office, 1903 Bartlett

Avenue, Altoona, WI.  Please note that any meeting where more seating is needed than is

available will be moved to the Pederson Commons, which is directly adjacent to the Board

Room. Please watch for door signage.

This meeting is open to the public. If a member of the public requires an accommodation to

attend the meeting, he or she should contact Executive Assistant Lisa Boss at least 24 hours in

advance of the meeting to request an accommodation.

I. Call to Order

II. Roll Call

III. Approval of Agenda

IV. Pledge of Allegiance

V. Communication with the Board (OE 8)

A. Unofficial Enrollment Data (OE 8)

B. Student Representative Introductions and Reports (GC 10)

C. Discussion of Board Activities (GC 3.4)

D. Budget Monitoring/Budget Transfers (OE 8.2)

E. Debt Payoff  (OE 6.1)

F. Academic and Career Planning Update (R1, R3)

VI. Agenda-Related Public Comment (OE 8.4)

VII. Non-Agenda-Related Public Comment (OE 8.4)

VIII. Monitoring for Results (B/SR 5.4a & B/SR 5.3a)

A. OE 2:  Emergency Superintendent Succession

B. R 3:  Application of Knowledge and Skills

IX. Board Consent Agenda (GC 2.4)

A. Removal of an Item from Board Consent Agenda for Separate

Consideration (GC 2.5)

B. Approval of August 15, 2022 Meeting Minutes (GC 2.4)



C. Approval of August 15, 2022 Executive Session Meeting Minutes (GC 2.4)

D. Approval of September 13, 2022 Meeting Minutes (GC 2.4)

E. Approval of September 13, 2022 Executive Session Meeting Minutes (GC

2.4)

X. Superintendent Consent Agenda (GC 2.4)

A. Removal of an Item from the Superintendent Consent Agenda for Separate

Consideration (GC 2.5)

B. Approval of Hires, Resignations and Retirements (GC 2.4)

1. AMS/AHS Lunch/Recess Supervisor - Hire

2. AMS Lunch/Recess Supervisor - Hire

3. AMS Lunch/Recess Supervisor - Hire

4. AMS Lunch/Recess Supervisor - Hire

5. AMS Boys Soccer Coach - Hire

6. AIS Lunch/Recess Supervisor - Hire

7. AIS Lunch/Recess Supervisor - Hire

8. AES Full Time Special Ed Paraprofessional - Hire

9. AES Part Time Special Ed Paraprofessional - Hire

10. AES Administrative Assistant - Hire

C. Approval of Checks for Payment (GC 2.4)

D. Authorization for Participation on State Crisis Response Team (GC 2.4)

XI. Matters Reserved for Board Action (B/SR 2.1)

A. Item Removed from Board Consent Agenda for Separate Consideration

(GC 2.5)

B. Item Removed from Superintendent Consent Agenda for Separate

Consideration (GC 2.5)

C. Consideration of Facility Planning Input (OE 3)

XII. Recess

XIII. Discussion of the Meeting (GC 2.2)

XIV. Adjourn to Executive Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute 19.85(1)(c) to

consider the employment of a public employee, 19.85(1)(c) to discuss the

performance of an individual employee, and 19.85(1)(f) to discuss a student

discipline matter.

XV. Following closed session, the Board will entertain a motion to reconvene into

open session and will take any further action that is necessary and appropriate,

including acting on any resolution that may be presented.

XVI. Book Study - The Art of Governing Coherently - Chapter 3 Discussion

XVII. Adjourn





ACP Update 2022
PRESENTED BY SARAH RADCLIFFE



Requirements
Annually review and, if necessary, update the long−range plan and 
education for employment program under s. PI 26.03. This review shall 
evaluate pupil postsecondary outcomes.

At the conclusion of the review, the school board shall prepare a report on 
the school district’s education for employment program.

The report shall describe the education for employment program’s current 
progress and future goals related to improving pupil postsecondary 
outcomes.









The ACP Model (DPI)

KNOW- Who am I?

EXPLORE- What do I want to do?

PLAN- How do I get there?

GO- Do IT!

Presenter
Presentation Notes
�





KNOW- Who am I?
K – 5
◦ Leadership Opportunities and Extracurricular activities - Kids in the Kitchen
◦ Setting, Reviewing and Revising SMART goals – Dream Big! 
◦ Decision Making Skills – Second Step SEL lessons

6-8
◦ Writing Personal Reflections – SEL lessons
◦ Identifying Strengths, Interests and Learning Styles – Career Development course

9-12
◦ Leadership Opportunities and Extracurricular activities - Career Interest Inventories annually
◦ Leadership Opportunities and Extracurricular activities (e.g. Skills USA, DECA, NHS)



EXPLORE- What do I want to do?
K – 5
◦ Career Cluster and Career Pathway Exploration – Career Exploration Game
◦ Career Interest Inventories - Careers Unit

6-8
◦ Career Research Paper, Project or Presentation

9-12
◦ Transcripted Credit courses
◦ CTE Course sequences
◦ Youth Apprenticeship



PLAN- How do I get there?
Resumes and Cover Letters
◦ Required for CCF Bank application in grades 4-8
◦ Required for Freshmen during Career Fair

Mock Interviews (grade 9)

CVTC Cluster Tour (grade 10)

Wisconsin Education Fair (grade 11)

Personal Finance (grade 11 or 12)

FAFSA, UW or CVTC application (grade 11/12)

One-On-One ACP advising (grades 8, 11)



GO- Do IT!
Course planning



 

 

 

 

 
Monitoring Report OE – 2: Emergency Superintendent Succession 

 
Date Presented: September 26, 2022    

 
Superintendent Certification 

With respect to Operational Expectations Policy OE-2: Emergency Superintendent Succession, taken as a 
whole, the Superintendent certifies that the proceedings information is accurate and complete, and the district: 

   X      Is in Compliance 
____ Is in Compliance with Noted Exceptions 
____ Is not in Compliance 

 

Superintendent Summary Statement: 

As required in OE-2, a Superintendent Succession Plan has been developed, filed with the District office, and 
distributed to all members of the Board of Education. I conclude that the district is in compliance with the 
expectations articulated in the policy.  

Signed:      Date: September 20, 2022 

 

Board of Education Action 

With respect to OE-2: Emergency Superintendent Succession, the Board finds the district: 

____ Is in Compliance 
____ Is in Compliance with Noted Exceptions 
____ Is not in Compliance 

 

Signed:        Date: 
                                         Board President 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  

 

Operational Expectations Monitoring Report 
OE-2:  Emergency Superintendent Succession 

OE-2: Emergency Superintendent Succession: The Superintendent shall designate at least one other executive 
staff member who is familiar with the Board’s governance process and issues of current concern and is 
capable of assuming Superintendent responsibilities on an emergency basis. 

 
Superintendent’s Interpretation  

The Board values leadership and the need to maintain continuity of district leadership to support the operations 
and progress of the school district. During periods when the Superintendent is not available by means of normal 
communication or is deemed incapable of carrying the leadership responsibilities due to a mental or physical 
condition, designated leaders will make decisions and provide leadership that would normally fall under the 
purview of the Superintendent until the Superintendent is able to resume the responsibilities or communications 
is reestablished with the Superintendent.  

Indicators 

Indicator One: Annually, the Superintendent will file a succession plan with the Board of Education and the 
Executive Assistant. 
Evidence: The succession plan was shared and reviewed with the District Leadership Team on August 17th.  
An electronic copy was filed with each Board member, the Executive Assistant, and each District Director via 
the September Executive Summary, Part 1, on September 15, 2022. Board members, the Executive Assistant, 
and District Directors have access to the plan via the Google docs sharing function. Paper copies are on file 
with the Executive Assistant and in the back cover of the Superintendent’s copy of the Emergency Operations 
Manual.  

 

Executive Summary 

The process of establishing and maintaining a succession plan is two-fold: to ensure that the District is secure in 
leadership if the Superintendent is temporarily unable to fill his or her duties and to provide an avenue to the 
Board in maintaining the single point of contact structure should a need arise during that time. A highly 
effective organization is built to withstand the transition of individuals. To achieve this level of systematic 
reliability takes deliberateness and deep development.  

The Emergency Superintendent Succession Plan designates internal leaders who can serve the role of 
Superintendent in a temporary, emergency capacity. This designation was discussed with district directors at the 
weekly District Leadership meeting on August 17th, and all directors agreed that they felt comfortable and 
capable of being named in this designation.  

District directors have participated with the Superintendent in systemwide learning and improvement work. The 
team has a yearlong data review schedule for the year. At weekly meetings, the team will review system-level 
data, discuss outcomes, and consider improvement opportunities. Directors serve as strand coaches, leading the 



implementation and improvement work for the various strategic plan strands. They also prepare and present 
monitoring reports to demonstrate progress or compliance to the Board. Beginning with the 2022-2023 school 
year, Directors will participate in the District policy update process.  

All Administrators participate monthly in Leader Development of evidence-based best practices around culture 
and strategy. Spiraling topics include staff motivation, reward, and recognition; improvement strategies; 
effective leadership tactics; data analysis; and equity. All Administrators serve on District scorecard strand 
teams and lead their own building or department scorecard processes with their leadership teams. This 
development and engagement seeks not only to strengthen leadership skills among the team, but also to develop 
capacity for system leadership among all leaders, ensuring that the expected or unexpected absence of an 
individual leader does not interfere with the progress of the greater organization, the support of our greater staff, 
and the pursuit of improved outcomes for our students.  

During the 2021-2022 school year, we began putting systems and processes in writing to not only ensure that 
they are implemented consistently, but to also embed them as a function of a system instead of a function of a 
person. We are continuing this work this year and are expanding this approach to be used for departmental 
systems and processes beyond those that are directed by administrators. At the start of the 2022-2023 school 
year we implemented a comprehensive Emergency Operations Manual that includes a District Incident 
Command Structure. Training and safety response tabletops will occur on an on-going basis. 

The Emergency Superintendent Succession plan additionally includes resources to support the Board in the 
unexpected long term incapacitation, illness, or injury of the Superintendent. Specifically included is contact 
information for the Executive Director of the Wisconsin Association of School District Administrators, a link to 
a list of current superintendent interims in Wisconsin, and a list of local retired superintendents who would be 
qualified to serve an interim role, should an unexpected need arise. To support uninterrupted service to the 
District and Board, there is a yearlong work plan containing key processes, deadlines, and events that is 
electronically on file in the Office of the Superintendent.  

Updating and filing the Superintendent Succession Plan is a task in the annual Superintendent work plan to 
occur annually at the start of the school year, to ensure that it is updated and in place when the school year 
begins.  

Commitment to Improve 

The weekly collaboration of the District Leadership Team and the monthly All Administrator Leader 
Development are key constructs that aim to grow the leadership capacity of the individual administrators and 
the entire organization. Not only is there delivery of development around evidence-based leadership strategies, 
there are also structured conversations and collaboration that seek to develop collective efficacy among the 
leadership team.  

With the implementation of an Emergency Operations manual, during the 2022-2023 school year, there will 
also be ongoing leader training around emergency response and regular table top drills that will be conducted at 
the leader development meetings.  

In addition to those current commitments to improve, there is also a long-term plan. Within 5 years, it is our 
goal to have succession plans in place for key administrator roles in the District, including all Director 
positions. For each position, the goal will be to have a successor not only identified, but being actively 
developed in both leadership skills and operational skills specific to that role. We are seeing greater turnover in 
education and leadership, and we are seeing fewer educators seeking high level administrative positions. In 
order to ensure the long term, systematic, and deliberate presence of high quality leaders in our organization, we 
can develop thoughtful long term plans to develop leaders who will be able to fill our own administrative 
vacancy upon our departure.  The goal is not to automatically appoint internal (or nearby) leaders to senior 



leadership positions, but to ensure there are highly effective and qualified candidates for administrative 
vacancies that occur and, following, ensure that our system continues to have quality leaders.  



Results Monitoring Report 
R-3: Application of Knowledge and Skills

Date Presented: September 26, 2022   

Superintendent Certification 

With respect to Results Policy R-3: Application of Knowledge and Skills, taken as a whole, the Superintendent 
certifies that the proceeding information is accurate and complete, and the district: 

_X _ Has Made Reasonable Progress 

____ Has Made Reasonable Progress with Noted Exceptions 

____ Has Not Made Reasonable Progress 

Superintendent Summary Statement 

This monitoring report briefly touches on work in our District that is of significant importance, preparing 
students for their post-secondary aspirations. We are building systems, processes and opportunities to ensure 
that students are prepared to follow their post-secondary dreams, whatever those dreams might be. Although we 
are still in the development phase of a universal guaranteed viable framework, we have additionally attained 
student outcomes worth noting. Specifically, in 2021 we set a goal to increase students who are college and 
career ready from 33% 35%. The actual outcome attained was 52%.  

Signed:  Date: September 16, 2022  

Board of Education Action 

With respect to R-3: Application of Knowledge and Skills the Board’s finds that the district: 

____ Has Made Reasonable Progress 

____ Has Made Reasonable Progress with Noted Exceptions 

____ Has Not Made Reasonable Progress 

Signed:  Date: September 26, 2022  

Board President 



 

 

 

 

  

Results Monitoring Report 
R-3: Application of Knowledge and Skills 

R-3: Application of Knowledge and Skills: Students apply knowledge and skills to analyze and evaluate real-
world conditions and circumstances, to make informed decisions and to solve problems.  

 
Superintendent’s Interpretation  

High school graduation is not the finish line for our students, but the starting line. As such, it is to the benefit of 
students that learning includes opportunities for students to see, understand, and engage in application of 
learning that help them practice crossing the bridge between the learning of today and their post-graduate 
futures. 

The Redefining Ready! research identifies benchmarks for college and career readiness. The career readiness 
indicators seek to engage students in real-world applications of the knowledge and skills they experience in 
school.  

Glossary 
Real-World Conditions and Circumstances: Factors that exist outside of school; may include factors expected in 
the future 

Informed Decisions: Decisions that are made after consideration of information outside of the student’s 
individual opinion or emotion. 

Solve Problems: Overcoming real or perceived obstacles.  

Indicators 

Indicator One: Students engage in community service that benefits people or organizations outside of the 
school system. 
Evidence: Count (percentage) of graduates who have reported community service hours.  
 
2020 Graduates 2021 Graduates 2022 Graduates 2023 Graduates 2024 Graduates 

0% 34% 29%   



 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Indicator Two: Students meet the external, workforce-based criteria to earn industry credentials. 
Evidence:  Count (percentage) of graduates who earned an industry credential(s).   
 

2020 Graduates 2021 Graduates 2022 Graduates 2023 Graduates 2024 Graduates 

16% 21% 3%   

 

 
Indicator Three: Students complete Youth Apprenticeships through local employers.  
Evidence: Count (percentage) of graduates who completed a Youth Apprenticeship(s). 
 
2020 Graduates 2021 Graduates 2022 Graduates 2023 Graduates 2024 Graduates 



3% 6% 3%   
 

 
 

Indicator Four: Students earn post-secondary credits through transcripted courses. 
Evidence: Count (percentage) of students who successfully passed a dual-credit- bearing class, thus 
earning both high school and post-secondary credit. 
 
2020 Graduates 2021 Graduates 2022 Graduates 2023 Graduates 2024 Graduates 

89% 91% 84%   
 

 
 

 

 

Indicator Five: Students have engaged in interest and strength inventories to identify a career pathway.  
Evidence: Count (percentage) of students with a career pathway identified in Xello.  



 
2020 Graduates 2021 Graduates 2022 Graduates 2023 Graduates 2024 Graduates 

91% 91% 92%   
 
 

 
 

Executive Summary 

As part of our pursuit to graduate students who are ready for their next steps in life, we measure indicators 
based on opportunities that we provide to help students apply knowledge and skills to analyze and evaluate real-
world conditions and circumstances, to make informed decisions and to solve problems. This is key to 
becoming contributing members of our communities.  

The data provided in this report measures opportunities over time for our recently graduated class. When the 
COVID-19 pandemic hit our state in the spring of 2020, we felt incredibly bad for our 2020 graduates to have 
the last few months of their senior year cut short without a hope of regaining those experiences. In reality, 
however, these students had nearly 4 years of ‘typical’ experiences. Our 2021 graduates experienced a major 
interruption in their junior year. And their senior year was marked with continued restrictions and hybrid 
learning. As we spent time figuring out ways to continue to offer robust experiences to our high school students 
in 2020 and 2021, our graduating class of 2022 were sophomores and juniors. These are the 2 years of high 
school where students engage the most in experiences that build knowledge and skills for real-world thinking 
and problem-solving.  

The measures we are using here to show preparedness rely heavily on partnerships with outside organizations. 
Those partner organizations were in a state of flux as well. You will see that, overall, we have downward trends  
on Earned Industry Credentials, Youth Apprenticeships, and transcripted credit.  

Community service to fulfill course requirements enhances the average odds of college degree attainment by 
22%.1 Aside from that advantage, community service is also positively associated with increased academic gain 

                                                           
1 https://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/ED497603.pdf 
 

https://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/ED497603.pdf


in high school, increased self-efficacy, increased engagement in civic responsibilities, and soft skill 
development, like networking, problem-solving and character building. 2  
 
An Identified Career Pathway means that a student has a current career interest. We aim to provide students a 
breadth of experiences while in high school to increase the likelihood that their post-graduation plans will 
transpire into a career. Career Pathways are identified through ACP planning and using a software program 
called Xello to engage in surveys that take a student's interests and strengths and translates them to career field 
options. Identified Career Pathways can change as often as a student would like, or may remain the same during 
all of their ACP planning experiences.  
 
Transcripted credit numbers overall are still high for our graduates, with almost all of them completing at least 
some type of dual credit opportunity during high school. As such, the slight downward trend is not alarming.  

Our Youth Apprenticeship numbers have been low for several years and still trending downward. This is an 
area for improvement moving forward. In the future, we will also measure certificate-earning work-based 
learning experiences, like an Department of Workforce Development (DWD) Employability Skills Certification 
and WI Co-Ops. We have not had these in the past.  

Earned Industry Credentials are important to help an individual find employment or advance in the workforce 
and accelerate a student’s progression into and through postsecondary education and training. These 
certifications have to be officially recognized in the industry and require strict adherence to skills learned and 
demonstrated.  

In 21/22, the commitments to improve included the following action items. Here is an update on progress.  
(made progress, complete) 

- improve reporting of community service hours to increase from 0 recorded 

We were able to increase community service hours recorded by surveying seniors and connecting with coaches / 
advisors to increase support for students recording community service hours. 

- look for opportunities to increase options for earning industry certifications 

We worked with our Business teachers to look for ways to increase this and began preparing our teachers to 
support more credentials. The teacher has left the district, however, we hired teachers who have supported this 
work previously. 

- data dashboard for drilling down into Redefining Ready indicators 

We engaged with Forecast 5 to build a dashboard. Through much data cleanup and integration, we have a data 
dashboard with Redefining Ready indicators. We will spend this school year doing data validation and ensuring 
that data from Skyward and other sources is accurately feeding our dashboard. We will be able to utilize the 
dashboard to monitor strategic priorities this school year as we continue to work on accuracy.  

- build out career pathways in our coursebook 

We were able to complete this for our current courses and utilize these planning sheets as one resource for 
students to select courses in career cluster interest areas. Career Cluster Course Planning Sheets 

- vertically align ACP process K-12 

                                                           
2 https://www.youtern.com/thesavvyintern/index.php/2012/11/16/12-reasons-community-service-should-be-required-curriculum/ 
 

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1JlxtR0_deEruV8fgBTe4zRlxhdy3_W8iOJT19WHSkOI/edit#gid=0
https://www.youtern.com/thesavvyintern/index.php/2012/11/16/12-reasons-community-service-should-be-required-curriculum/


We began this work by identifying areas we provide instruction around Academic and Career Planning 
elements. ACP Components by Grade. This coming school year, professional development on Future Ready 
Learning will include information regarding the scope and sequence of ACP components for each grade level. 

Commitment to Improve 

During the 21/22 school year, we were able to look at the experiences that we offer our students to help them be 
prepared for life beyond high school and ensure that these are experiences that are available to our young 
people. We revitalized and regrouped around these opportunities  

Indicator 1: 

Last year, we held our first AHS Career Fair at the high school. We prepared our Freshman students to 
participate in mock interviews as a portion of the day’s events. This year, as we prepare for the second AHS 
Career Fair, we plan to build in opportunities for students in other grades to participate in some school-wide 
community service experience. Our Athletics and Activities Director will be working with coaches and advisors 
to communicate instructions on tracking community service in Xello. We will also be intentionally planning 
time to support students to enter community service in Xello during Railtime. We know our students volunteer 
more than what we are capturing in our data. We need to work on improving our processes for tracking this 
information. We made some improvement in tracking this for our 2022 grads, but we have more improvements 
to make. 

Indicator 2: 

Our students have opportunities to earn credentials that are recognized by industries to prepare them for the 
workforce. One example of this is a Certified Nursing Assistant certificate. Previously, we offered CNA and IT 
Help Desk certification. Our new Business Education teachers are certified and motivated to offer other 
certifications related to coursework our students take, such as Microsoft Word and Excel certificates. The 
Future Ready Learning Department is already working with the new staff members to ensure that software and 
testing portals are available to add these new certification opportunities for students.  

Indicator 3: 

Supporting workplace learning is a high priority for our district. Of the career-focused indicators, a work based 
learning experience is among the most beneficial in supporting students to gain experience, learn work-related 
skills, garner a relationship with a local employer, learn more about what the industry has to offer and to bolster 
their resumes with accredited employment opportunities. True work based learning experiences are not just 
having a job. They also incorporate the learning and demonstrating work skills valuable to improving the 
community. Since this is such a high priority for our students, we restructured support for this area by 
revamping the responsibilities of the Youth Apprenticeship Coordinator and CTE Coordinator contracts.  

One of our previous classes called ‘School To Work’ has allowed work release to students for holding down a 
job during part of their school day. In order to create better learning opportunities for students, we are working 
with the students and their employers to incorporate the Wisconsin Employability Skills Certificate Program. 
The intent of this program is to recognize a student's mastery of employability skills valued by employers, to 
help students explore their career interests, and to provide a state credential of student mastery. We will also 
work with employed students to increase Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development Youth 
Apprenticeship completion with current employers whenever possible.  

Both Recognized Industry Credentials and Work Based Learning certificates also allow our district to attain 
funding to assist us further with programming through Career and Technical Education Incentive Grant and WI 
DWD Youth Apprenticeship Grant funding. 

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1n6cGZg2JgP_r-oDmpaw-6LPSN1hF_4Jwb2EOY6FJieE/edit#gid=0


We have had ongoing participation over 90% with our students having an Identified Career Interest. We utilize 
a variety of activities to help students discover what they are good at, what they love and how that transpires 
into potential careers. Our AHS Student Services / School Counseling staff will be working with a stakeholder 
group of teachers in an ad hoc committee on College and Career Readiness to improve the delivery of ACP 
lessons to all students through classroom teachers. This is a huge undertaking and it is best practice as it 
requires the classroom teachers to engage in college and career exploration with students. We have arranged 
students into Railtime groups that they will stay with for all four years of high school to help students build a 
relationship with that teacher related to ACP, College and Career Readiness and other programs like Social-
Emotional Learning. Our School Counselors, who have the most knowledge in these areas of ACP, cannot work 
with all 500+ high school students individually related to being ready for life after graduation. We will work 
with our high school teachers to empower them to support this work with our students. This should positively 
impact the quality and scope and sequence of activities and opportunities we offer to students and continue to 
help our students know their current identified career interest at any given point.  

We have also specifically set aside 3 hours this school year at each building to engage staff in professional 
development around preparing students to use their skills and knowledge to make informed decisions on real-
world problems and Academic and Career Planning. 

We will also continue to support our dual credit opportunities and have done well with this indicator in the past. 
We hired a Virtual Learning Coordinator to oversee virtual coursework and our fully virtual learners. This will 
also bring some continuity and support to our virtual dual credit options, like Virtual Business Academy.  

Our strategic priorities that align to this Results Policy are:  

We will develop and implement a student, staff, and family communication plan 
for Academic and Career Plan-related activities and information.  TIGHT FRL 
Dept; LOOSE AES, AIS, AMS, AHS 

We will engage staff in professional development related to Academic and Career 
Planning (including college / career ready indicators, career clusters, definitions, 
districtwide Academic and Career Planning plan). TIGHT FRL Dept, All Schools  

We will increase the percent of students from traditionally marginalized 
populations who meet the indicators of college and career readiness from the 
Redefining Ready Indicators. LOOSE AES, AIS, AMS, AHS, Stu Services, FRL 
Dept     

We will expand in-district student workplace learning opportunities. LOOSE 
Food, Cust, FRL, Finc Ops  



 
Regular Monthly Meeting of the Board of Education 

August 15, 2022 6:30 pm 
District Office Conference Room 

 
Minutes on the Agenda Items 

 
I. The regular meeting was called to order by Board President - Rick Risler at 6:30 

pm in the boardroom. 
II. Roll call was taken with the following present:  

Rick Risler - President 
Jeremy Zook - Vice President 
Rich Hager - Treasurer 
Hillarie Roth - Clerk  - Absent 
Nicole Breed - Member 
Dr. Heidi Taylor-Eliopoulos - Superintendent 
Earl Knitt - Director of Finance & Operations 
Sarah Radcliffe - Director of Future Ready Learning 
Andrea Steffen - Director of Curriculum & Instruction 
Melissa Lesik - Director of Student Services & Special Education 
Cale Zuiker - AIS Principal 
Kyle Rundquist - AIS/AMS Dean of Students 
Lisa Boss - School Board Secretary 

III. Approval of Agenda -  Motion by Jeremy Zook to approve the agenda as 
presented, seconded by Rich Hager.  Motion carried 4-0 with a unanimous yes 
vote. 

IV. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
V. Communication with the Board (OE 8) 

A. Discussion of Board Activities (GC 3.4) - Nicole Breed attended the CESA 
10 convention.  

B. Introduction of New Administrators - We welcomed Early (Gus) Knitt, 
Interim Director of Finance & Operations, Missy Lesik, Director of Student 
Services and Special Education, Cale Zuiker, AIS Principal,  and Kyle 
Rundquist, AIS/AMS Dean of Students. 

C. District Annual Scorecard Updates (OE 8.2) - Dr. Eliopoulos provided the 
results for the 2021 2022 Strategic goals as well as a copy of the 2022 2023 
goals. 



 
D. Fall COVID 19 Protocols (8.2) - We have been reviewing the Eau Claire 

County Health Department recommendations.  We are focusing on hand 
washing, sanitizing, etc.  If someone is sick, they are to stay home. All staff 
and students must be fever free for 24 hours without a fever reducing 
medication.  

E. Budget Monitoring/Budget Transfers (OE 8.2) - Gus Knitt provided an 
explanation regarding his new financial format.   

F. IRS Over- and Under-Payments (OE 8.2) - Gus Knitt shared the details 
regarding our overpayment/underpayment and refunds from the IRS. 

G. 2021-2022 Budget (OE 8.2) - Gus Knitt provided the district’s current 
financial information.  He agreed to provide a quarterly report showing 
balances of accounts. 

VI. Agenda-Related Public Comment (OE 8.4) - None. 
VII. Non-Agenda-Related Public Comment (OE 8.4) - None. 

VIII. Monitoring for Results (B/SR 5.4a & B/SR 5.3a) 
A. OE 1:  Global Expectations  - Dr. Eliopoulos gave an overview of the 

district’s progress.  Motion by Rich Hager to accept OE1: Global 
Expectations with the suggested additions, seconded by Jeremy Zook .  
Motion carried 4-0 with a unanimous yes vote.   Rich Hager made a 
motion that the district is in compliance, seconded by Nicole Breed. 
Motion carried 4-0 with a unanimous yes vote. 

IX. Board Consent Agenda (GC 2.4) 
A. Removal of an Item from Board Consent Agenda for Separate 

Consideration (GC 2.5) 
B. Approval of July 18, 2022 Meeting Minutes (GC 2.4) 
C. Approval of July 18, 2022 Executive Session Meeting Minutes (GC 2.4) 

Motion by Nicole Breed to approve the Board Consent Agenda as presented, seconded 
by Rich Hager.  Motion carried 4-0 with a yes vote.  

X. Superintendent Consent Agenda (GC 2.4) 
A. Removal of an Item from the Superintendent Consent Agenda for Separate 

Consideration (GC 2.5) 
B. Approval of Hires, Resignations and Retirements (GC 2.4) 

1. JV/Assistant Football Coach - Hire - Jeremy Monk 
2. AMS Football Coach - Hire - Wyatt Maukstad 
3. Assistant Cross Country Coach - Hire - John Johnson 
4. AMS Custodian - Resignation - Lisa Davis 
5. AMS Math Teacher - Resignation - Shauna Brion 
6. AMS LTE 8th Grade ELA Teacher - Hire - Sarah Spaulding 
7. AMS LTE Special Education Teacher - Hire - Ben Magnus 
8. AHS Varsity Dance Team Coach - Resignation - Mikkena Vlcek  



 
9. AES LTE Physical Education Teacher - Hire - Renee Menard 
10. Districtwide LTE EL Teacher - Hire - Adela Guerrero 
11. Districtwide LTE .45 EL Teacher - Hire - Sharon Evans  
12. AMS LTE 7th Grade Math Teacher - Hire - Addison Van Ess 
13. AES SPED Para - Resignation - Patricia Lenz 
14. AHS Administrative Assistant - Hire - Melissa Buss 
15. School Psychologist - Hire - Margaret Steingruebl (REMOVED) 
16. AIS/AMS LTE Business Ed Teacher - Hire  Teresa Marquardt 

C. Approval of Treasurer’s Report (GC 2.4) 
D. Approval of Checks for Payment (GC 2.4) 
E. Second Reading of Policies (GC 2.4) 

1. 345.3 Homework (New) 
2. 345.4 Promotion and Retention of Students Through 8th Grade 

(New) 
3. INDB Flag Display (Delete) 
4. JI Student Awards (Delete) 
5. JIB Academic Awards (Delete) 
6. JIBB Honor Card Program (Delete) 
7. JIC Athletic Awards (Delete) 
8. JID Music Awards (Delete) 
9. GCE Substitute Teachers (Delete) 

F. 66.0301 Co-op Agreement with ECASD for PT Services (GC 2.4) 
G. 66.0301 Co-op Agreement with Augusta School District for Special 

Education Services (GC 2.4) 
H. District Library Plan (GC 2.4) 

Motion by Jeremy Zook to approve the Superintendent Consent Agenda with the 
removal of XB15 and moving it to XIV, seconded by Rich Hager.  Motion carried 
4-0 with a yes vote.   

XI. Matters Reserved for Board Action (B/SR 2.1) 
A. Item Removed from Board Consent Agenda for Separate Consideration 

(GC 2.5) - None 
B. Item Removed from Superintendent Consent Agenda for Separate 

Consideration (GC 2.5) - X.B.15. School Psychologist - Hire - Margaret 
Steingruebl was moved to XIV Executive Session. 

XII. Recess 
 

XIII. Discussion of the Meeting (GC 2.2) 
 

XIV. Adjourn to Executive Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute 19.85(1)(c) to 
consider the employment of a public employee and pursuant to 19.85(1)(d) to 



 
consider strategies for crime detection and prevention (school safety plan 
review).  
Motion by Jeremy Zook to adjourn to Executive Session at 7:21 pm, seconded by 
Nicole Breed.  Motion carried 4-0 with a unanimous yes vote. 
ACTIONS TAKEN IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 
XB15. School Psychologist - Hire - Margaret Steingruebl - Motion by Rich Hager to 
accept the hire as presented, second by Nicole Breed  Motion carried 4-0 with a 
unanimous yes vote. 
 

XV. Following closed session, the Board will entertain a motion to reconvene into 
open session and will take any further action that is necessary and appropriate, 
including acting on any resolution that may be presented.  
Motion by Nicole Breed to adjourn at 7:45 pm from Executive Session to Open 
Session, seconded Jeremy Zook.  Motion carried 4-0 with a unanimous yes vote.    
 

XVI. Book Study - The Art of Governing Coherently - Chapter 2 Discussion 
 

XVII. Adjourn - Motion by Rich Hager to adjourn at 7:58 pm, seconded Jeremy Zook.  
Motion carried 4-0 with a unanimous yes vote.   

 
The next Regular Meeting of the Altoona Board of Education is scheduled for September 
26, 2022 in the District Board room.   
 
Lisa Boss, School Board Secretary 
 
 
____________________________   __________________ 
Board Vice-President      Date 
 

 
Students are prepared academically and socially for personal success in life and are 

respectful, contributing members of the local and global communities. 



 
Special Meeting of the Board of Education 

September 13, 2022, 6:00 pm 
District Office Conference Room 

 
Minutes on the Agenda Items 

 
 

I. The regular meeting was called to order by Board Vice - President - Jeremy Zook 
at 6:02 pm in the boardroom. 

II. Roll call was taken with the following present:  
Rick Risler - President (Virtually) 
Jeremy Zook - Vice President 
Rich Hager - Treasurer 
Hillarie Roth - Clerk (Virtually)  
Nicole Breed - Member 
Dr. Heidi Taylor-Eliopoulos - Superintendent 
Earl Knitt - Director of Finance & Operations 
Sarah Radcliffe - Director of Future Ready Learning 
Andrea Steffen - Director of Curriculum & Instruction 
Melissa Lesik - Director of Student Services & Special Education 
Becky Bauer - AHS Principal 
Steve Buss - AMS Principal 
Cale Zuiker - AIS Principal 
Leslie Lancette - AES Principal 
Lisa Boss - School Board Secretary 

III. Approval of Agenda -  Motion by Hillarie Roth to approve the agenda as 
presented, seconded by Rich Hager.  Motion carried 5-0 with a unanimous yes 
vote. 

IV. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
V. Agenda-Related Public Comment (OE 8.4) - None 

VI. Non-Agenda-Related Public Comment (OE 8.4) - Amy Grunewald spoke 
pertaining to her employment. 

VII. Superintendent Consent Agenda (GC 2.4) 
A. Removal of an Item from the Superintendent Consent Agenda for Separate 

Consideration (GC 2.5) B. 16. AES Special Ed Paraprofessional - 
Resignation moved to VIII.A.  



 
B. Approval of Hires, Resignations and Retirements (GC 2.4) 

1. AHS Boys Assistant Soccer Coach - Resignation Isaiah Sorvaag 
2. AHS Custodian - Resignation Levi Spann 
3. AHS Custodian - Hire Jose Nunez 
4. AMS Custodian - Hire Chelsea Dahl 
5. AHS DECA Advisor - Hire James Maier 
6. AMS Paraprofessional - Hire Veronica LeBeis 
7. AMS 7th Grade ELA Teacher - Resignation Rachael Stilp 
8. AMS LTE 7th Grade ELA Teacher - Hire Tyler Urness 
9. AMS Volleyball Coach - Hire Brittany Emmerich 
10. AIS/AMS Morning Crossing Guard - Hire Maria Pierro 
11. AES Administrative Assistant - Resignation Rachel Schumacher 
12. AES LTE 1st Grade Teacher - Hire Sydney Wekkin 
13. AES PT Special Ed Paraprofessional - Hire Tracy Hartman 
14. AES PT Recess Supervisor - Hire Casey Koenig 
15. AES Crossing Guard - Hire Nicole Olson 
16. AES Special Ed Paraprofessional - Resignation (REMOVED) Amy 

Grunewald 
17. AES Special Ed Paraprofessional - Resignation Kathy Brock 
18. AIS Assistant Drama Coach - Resignation Abbie Statz 
19. AHS SADD/SAFE Advisor - Resignation Erica Emerson 

Motion by Hillarie Roth to approve the Superintendent Consent Agenda with the 
removal of VII B.16,  seconded by Rich Hager.  Motion carried 5-0 with a yes vote.   

 
VIII. Matters Reserved for Board Action (B/SR 2.1) 

A. Item Removed from Superintendent Consent Agenda for Separate 
Consideration (GC 2.5) VII.B.16. moved to XI. 

IX. Recess 
 

X. Discussion of the Meeting (GC 2.2) 
 

XI. Adjourn to Executive Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute 19.85(1)(c) to 
consider the employment of a public employee.  Motion by Hillarie Roth to 
adjourn to Executive Session at 6:14, seconded by Rich Hager.  Motion carried 5-
0.  
 
Actions taken during Executive Session: 
VII B. 16.  AES Special Ed Paraprofessional - Resignation.  Motion by Hillarie 
Roth to accept the resignation from Amy Grunewald as presented, seconded by 
Rich Hager.  Motion carried 5-0. 



 
 

XII. Following closed session, the Board will entertain a motion to reconvene into 
open session and will take any further action that is necessary and appropriate, 
including acting on any resolution that may be presented.  
Motion by Hillarie Roth to Adjourn Executive Session to move to open session at 
6:17 pm., seconded by Rich Hager.  Motion carried 5-0 with a unanimous yes 
vote.   
 

XIII. Adjourn- Motion by Hillarie Roth to adjourn at 6:18 pm, seconded Rich Hager.  
Motion carried 5-0 with a unanimous yes vote.   

 
The next Regular Meeting of the Altoona Board of Education is scheduled for September 
26, 2022 in the District Board room.   
 
Lisa Boss, School Board Secretary 
 
 
____________________________   __________________ 
Board Clerk        Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Students are prepared academically and socially for personal success in life and are 
respectful, contributing members of the local and global communities. 



















































           

speakup.widoj.gov 

1-800-MY-SUSO-1 

1 

 

 

Wisconsin Department of Justice Office of School Safety 
 

Critical Incident Response Team (CIRT) – Member Agreement 
 
Parties 
 
The parties to this Agreement (together, the Parties, and individually, a Party) are the Wisconsin 
Department of Justice, operating through its Office of School Safety (OSS), and the individual 
Critical Incident Response Team member identified on the signature page of this Agreement 
(CIRT Member). 
 
Purpose 
 
The mission of OSS is to enhance comprehensive school safety in Wisconsin schools. To fulfill 
this mission, OSS prioritizes crisis prevention efforts in schools. When critical incidents do occur, 
OSS also recognizes the need for prompt, efficient, and evidence-based crisis intervention and 
response. To provide crisis intervention and response resources to schools that experience a 
critical incident, OSS has assembled critical incident response teams comprised of individual 
members with the necessary experience and training to provide appropriate support. The 
purpose of this Agreement is to establish a mutual understanding between OSS and the CIRT 
Member identified below with respect to the CIRT Member’s participation in an OSS CIRT.  
 
Effective Date and Term 
 
This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by both Parties, and shall continue until 
such time as either Party terminates the Agreement by providing 30-day written notice of 
termination to the other Party. 
 
Roles and Responsibilities 
 
Following a request for assistance from a school in connection with a critical incident, OSS 
leadership and the OSS CIRT Coordinator will discuss an appropriate response plan. If the plan 
involves response by CIRT members, the OSS CIRT Coordinator will contact CIRT members to 
inquire about their availability to assist with the response. CIRT members should not respond to 
a critical incident unless requested to do so by OSS.  
 
The scope of the CIRT response will vary depending on the incident and the resources required. 
Involvement by a CIRT member could range from a telephone call to an on-scene deployment. 
A larger deployment could include multi-disciplinary teams with CIRT members of varying 
backgrounds and expertise. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the CIRT Member shall 
derive substantial benefits from the CIRT Member's participation in an OSS CIRT, such as 
specialized CIRT training in a professional environment and critical incident deployment 
experience. 

https://speakup.widoj.gov/


           

speakup.widoj.gov 

1-800-MY-SUSO-1 

2 

 

 
In the event of a critical incident requiring involvement by CIRT members, the OSS CIRT 
Coordinator will ask CIRT members to respond according to their training and expertise. Only 
CIRT members that have been trained in crisis response will be deployed on-scene in response 
to a critical incident. 
 
If the OSS CIRT Coordinator requests a CIRT Member to respond to a critical incident, the CIRT 
Member shall obtain permission from their own employer before responding. The CIRT Member 
will serve as a member of an OSS CIRT without compensation. 
 
When a CIRT Member responds on scene to a school, the CIRT Member is expected to follow 
that school’s policies and procedures and defer to the direction of the building administrator, 
local law enforcement, and any incident command post. 
 
Confidentiality 
 
A CIRT Member shall not disclose non-public information relating to critical incidents when the 
CIRT Member obtained such information in connection with their role as a member of an OSS 
CIRT. Such information includes, but it not limited to, personal identifiable information or health 
information about students, school staff, or their families, or non-public information about the 
critical incident itself. 
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a CIRT Member may disclose non-public information relating 
to a critical incident in the following circumstances: 
 

• To law enforcement as appropriate to assist with a law enforcement investigation;  

• When child abuse or neglect is suspected such that a report of the suspected abuse or 
neglect is required by law; 

• When disclosure would mitigate the risk of bodily harm associated with a clear and 
present danger to any person; 

• To the appropriate personnel at the school involved in the critical incident;  

• In connection with debriefings about the critical incident; 

• When disclosure is required pursuant to applicable law or regulation, including without 
limitation the Wisconsin public records statute; or 

• When disclosure is compelled by a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
Before disclosing any non-public information about a critical incident, the CIRT Member shall 
notify the OSS CIRT Coordinator of the anticipated disclosure and, to the extent permitted or 
practicable, shall delay disclosure until OSS has had a reasonable opportunity to consult with 
the CIRT Member about the scope of disclosure and/or to seek a protective order or other 
appropriate remedy. 
 

https://speakup.widoj.gov/


speakup.widoj.gov 

1-800-MY-SUSO-1

3 

Training 

In consultation with subject matter experts, OSS has identified specialized training that is 
mandatory for all CIRT members. The mandatory training may include some, or all, of the 
following material: 

• Standard Reunification Method (“I Love U Guys” Foundation)

• PREPaRE 1 & 2 Workshops

• Trauma Informed Care

• Resource Mapping

• Crisis Communications with the Media

• Restorative Practices/CIR Toolkit

The CIRT Member shall submit proof of attendance to the OSS CIRT Coordinator after the 
training has been completed. OSS also may consider proof of analogous prior training in lieu of 
the training offered through OSS.   

Liability and Limitations 

The CIRT Member is not employed by the Wisconsin Department of Justice and shall not be 
construed as an employee or agent of OSS or the Wisconsin Department of Justice. Each Party 
shall be responsible and liable only for its own acts and omissions under this Agreement. In the 
event of a third-party liability claim, each Party shall defend its own interests. No Party 
indemnifies any other Party under this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall provide or 
confer on any other person or party other than the Parties to this Agreement any rights, 
obligations, remedies, or liabilities under this Agreement.  

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties. This Agreement may be 
modified or amended by agreement in writing by the Parties to the Agreement.  

https://speakup.widoj.gov/


speakup.widoj.gov 

1-800-MY-SUSO-1

4 

The signatories to this Agreement represent that they have been duly authorized to execute this 
Agreement, and that the Agreement constitutes a valid and obligation of the parties to this 
Agreement. 

Agreed and accepted: 

_______________________________ ____________ 

Eric J. Wilson     Date Signed 

Deputy Attorney General  

Wisconsin Department of Justice 

Signature* 

Signatory’s Name 

Signatory’s Title 

Department/Office/District/Agency 

Street Address 

City, State, Zip Code 

Date Signed 

*This electronic signature is legally enforceable under the Wisconsin Uniform Electronic
Transactions Act, as well as other applicable state and federal laws.

https://speakup.widoj.gov/

	_ AGENDA 20220926
	_ NOTICE 20220926
	COMBINED BOARD PACKET
	Budget Comparison
	ACP Report upright
	ACP Update 2022
	Requirements
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	The ACP Model (DPI)
	KNOW- Who am I? 
	EXPLORE- What do I want to do? 
	PLAN- How do I get there? 
	GO- Do IT! 

	2022_09 OE 2_ Emergency Superintendent Succession
	2022_09 R3 Application of Knowledge and Skills
	_ MINUTES 20220815
	_ MINUTES 20220913
	Checks for Approval
	OSS CIR Team Member Agreement


	Signatory's Name: Dr. Heidi Eliopoulos
	Signatory's Title: Superintedent
	Department/Office/District/Agency: School District of Altoona
	Street Address: 1903 Bartlett Ave
	City, State, Zip Code: Altoona WI 54720
	Date Signed: 


